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afterrebilling.in orderto permit carriers
tq obtain a determination from us asto
whether anyadditional chargesmustbe
paid beforegoing to court.

In the event theshipper andcarrier
cannotresolvetheir dispute, the
complainingparty should file an
informal complaint with usthat
documentsthe dispute. Weintend to
handlesuchcasesinformally underthe
rulesat 49 CFR 1130.Filingswith us
must include eitheracopyof whatever
theshippersubmittedto thecarrierto
contestthechargesandanyresponseby
thecarrieror thecarrierrebilling and
anyresponseby theshipper.Weare
delegatingauthorityto theSuspension!
SpecialPermissionBoardto handle
thesecomplaints.

If our handlingof thedisputedoesnot
terminateit, the aggrievedpartymustbe
mindful of thestatuteof limitationsfor
filing courtactionswhich is now 2 years
from thedatetheclaimaccruesbut is
reducedto 18 monthson December3.
1994, 49 U.S.C. 11706(a)&(b).Congress
hasgiventheCommissionthe
jurisdiction to adjudicatethesedisputes,
but only a courtcanorderthepayment
of moniesthat maybe owed.In other
words, a courtactionmustbefiled
within thestatuteof limitations period.
Filing with theCommissiondoesnot
toll thestatuteof limitations for
bringingcourt action.

Environmental And Energy
Consid erations

We concludethat therule adopted
herewill not significantly affecteither
thequality of thehumanenvironment
o~theconservationof energyresources.

RegulatoryFlexibility Analysis

We concludethat ouractionwill not
havea significanteconomicimpacton
a substantialnumberof smallentities.
This actiononly involvesdelegationof
responsibilitiesto theSuspension!
SpecialPermissionBoardto handle
thesecomplaints.

List of Subjects

-9 CFR Part 1011

Administrativepracticeand
pro:edure,Authority delegations
(Governmentagencies),Organization
andfunctions(Governmentagencies).

4~C’FR Part 1130

Administrative practiceand
Procedare.

D�’cided: December8, 1994.

By theCommissioii,ChairmanMcDonald.
Vice ChairmanMorgan,andCommissioners
SimmonsandOwen.
VernonA. Wtfliams,
Secretory.

For the reasonssetforth in the
preamble,title 49, chapterX, part 1011
is amendedas set forth below:

PART 1011—COMMISSION
ORGANIZATION DELEGATIONS OF
AUTHORITY

1. Theauthoritycitation for part 1011
is revised to read as follows:

Authority: 5 U.S.C.553; 31 U.S.C.9701; 49
U.S.C.10301,10302, 10304,10305.10321,
10762.

2. In § 1011.6 anewparagraph

(a)(1)(iv) is addedto readasfollows;
§ 1011.6 Employee boards.
* * * * *

(a)
(1)
(iv) To handle any disputesthat may

arise concerningthe applicability or
reasonablenessof motor commoncarrier
ratesunder49 U.S.C. 10762(a)(3) and
(4).
* * * * *

[FR Doc. 94—31152Filed 12—19—94: 8:45 aml
BaLING CODE 7035-01-P

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Fish and Wildlife Service

50 CFR Part 17

RINIO18—ACO1 —

Endangered and Threatened Wildlife
and Plants; Determination of
Threatened Status for the Cherokee
Darter and Endangered Status for the
Etowah Darter

AGENCY: Fish andWildlife Service,
Interior.
ACTION: Final rule.

SUMMARY: The Fish andWildlife Service
(Service)determinesthreatenedstatus
for theCherokeedarter(Etheostoma
(Ulocentra)sp.)andendangeredstatus
for theEtowahdarter(Etheostoina
etawahae)undertheEndangered
SpeciesAct of 1973 (Act), asamended.
TheCherokeedarterandEtowahdarter
arerecentlydiscoveredspeciesof fish
thatareendemicto theEtowahRiver
system in north Georgia.

TheCherokeedarteris now known
from approximately20 small tributary
systemsof theEtowahRiver, but
healthypopulationsareknownfrom
only a few sites.TheEtowahdarteris
known from theupperEtowahRiver

mainstemandtwo tributarysystems.
Impcnmdrnents and deteriorating water
andbenthichabitat quality resulting
from siltation, agricultural runoff, other
pollutants, poor land usepractices,
increasedurbanization,andwaste
dischargeshave resulted in the
restrictionandfragmentation of these
species’currentranges.Thesefactors
continue to impact the speciesandtheir
habitat.
EFFECTIVEDATE: January19, 1995.
ADDRESSES:The completefile for this
rule is availablefor public inspection,
by appointment,duringnormalbusiness
hoursattheU.S. FishandWildlife
Service,6620 SouthpointDrive South,
Suite 310,Jacksonville,Florida 32216.
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Mr
RobertS. Butler at theaboveaddress
(904/232—2580).

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Background

The EtowahRiver is oneof three
majorupperCoosaRiversystem
tributaries,theothersbeingthe
ConasaugaandOostanaulaRivers. The
Etowahjoins theOostanaulaRiverin
Rome,Georgia,to form theCoosaRiver
TheCoosaRiveritself is themajor
easterntributaryof theMobile Basin
andemptiesinto theGulf of Mexico in
southwestAlabama.TheEtowahRiver
systemdrainsportionsof theBlue
Ridge,Piedmont,andValley andRidge
physiographicprovinces.All streamsin
thedrainageareuplandin natureand
characterizedby high gradientsand
rocky substrates.Land usepatternsof
the Etowah systemarelargelyof arural
agrarianeconomy,with scattered
municipalities,including the
encroachingAtlantametropolitanarea.

Thediversity of theaquaticfaunais
commensuratewith thediversityof
phvsiographicprovincescomprisingthe
basin.Many of theaquaticorganisms
reportedfrom theEtowahsystemare
rare.Recordsof federallyprotected
speciesareknown for an endangered
fish (amberdarter,Percinaantesella),
four endangeredmussels(upland
combshell,Epioblasmametastriata,
southernclubshell,P/eurobenia
decisum;ovateclubshell,P. perovatum.
andtriangularkidneyshell,
Ptvchobranchusgreeni),anda
threatened mussel (Alabama
moccasinshell,Medionidus
acutissirnus).In addition,several
Category2 candidatespeciesfrom the
Service’sanimal noticeof review
publishedin theFederal Registerof
November21. 1991 (56FR 58804)are
alsoknown from theEtowahRiver
system.Theseincludeamussel
(Tennesseeheelsplitter,Lasmigona
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hoistonia),five fishes(rock darter,
Etheostomarupestre;freckleddarter,
Percinalenticula; bronze darter, P
pa/mans;lined chub, Hybopsis
lineapunctata;andfrecklebelly
madtom,Noturusinunitus).andat least
threeaquaticsnails(spindleelimia,
Elimia capillaris; coidwaterelimia, E.
gerhardti;androughhornsnail,
Pleuroceraforemani).It is estimated
that 35 of thepotentially 50 freshwater
musselspeciesthat onceinhabitedthe
EtowabRiver systemhavebeen
extirpated(Burkheadet a]. 1992);
severalof thesespeciesarenow
consideredextinct.The EtowahRiver
systemat onetime containeda
significantportion of theaquatic
biodiversity of theupperMobile Basin

CherokeeDarter

A small percid fish, theCherokee
darteris subcylindrical in shape.and
hasa relatively blunt snoutwith a
subterminalmouth. The body shadeis
white to paleyellow. The sideof adults
is pigmentedwith usually eight small
dark olive blackblotchesthat develop
ifliO vertically elongate.slightly oblique
barsin breedingadults,especiallyin
miles. Thebackusuallyhaseight small
drrk saddlesandinterveningpaleareas.
The Cherokeedarterhasprovento be
distinct from theCoosadarter.E.
cocsae.a specieswith which it -was
previouslyconfused,by peaknuptial
malesneverhavingfive discretecolor
bards in thespinoils dorsal fin

Cherokeedartersinhabatsmall to
nu-alumszewarm-watercreeksci
ru ~derategradient.‘n uh predominately
ru:kv bottoms.It rs usa.aallvfound in
shc ~cw’~~ter in sectionsof reduced
cu~rcnttvmcallv in runs aboveand
bejow riffles andat theecotonesof
riffles andbackwaters.The Cherokee
darteras asscc:atca~vith largegravel.
cobble,and smaflbo~lde;substrates,
andis uncammonh,or rarely found over
bedrock.fine gravel,or sand.It is most
ahuudantin streamsecuonswith
relatively clearwaterandclean
substrates(little Siit deposition).The
Cherokeedarteris intolerantof heavyto
moderatesilt deposition.The Cherokee
darter,like othermembersof the
subgenusUlocentra, is intolerantof
impoundment.

TheCherokeedarteris endemicto the
EtowahRi~ersystemin north Georg:a.
whereit is primarilY restrictedto
streamsdrainingtheP~edmont
ph’:siographicprovince,andto a lesser
extent,theBlue Ridgephvsiographic
pro’.’ince. TheCherokeedarteroccursin
about20 small to moderatelslarge
tributary systemsof themiddle and
upperEtowah Riversystem.However.
only a few sitescontain healthy

populations of this species.The largest
populations occurin northern
tributariesupstreamof Allatoona
Reservoir. Populationsare smaller in
tributariesdrainingthesouthernportion
of thesystem.Thesoutherntributary
systemstendto drainareasexhibiting
lessreliefandareon the averagemuch
more degraded. Cherokeedarter
populationsarefound primarily above
Allatoona Reservoir. Downstreamof
Allatoona Dam, populations are
restrictedto two tributary systems.

TheCherokeedarterexhibits a
disjunctanddiscontinuousdistribution
patternindicating fragmentationand
isolationof populations.The placement
of AllatoonaReservoirin themiddle
EtowahRiversystemhascausedmuch
of the fragmentation of this species’
populations.Onemajor tributarysystem
in theupperEtowahsystem.Amicalola
Creek.apparentlynaturally lacks
populationsof Cherokeedarters,but
containsa relativelycloserelative and
also a narrowendemic,theholiday
darter,E. brevirostrum.TheCherokee
darteris allopatric(i.e., the rangesof the
speciesdo not overlap) with theother
two Ulocentraspeciesin thewa~ershecl.
theholiday darterandCoosadarter A
formal descriptionof theCherokee
darteris awaitingpublication (Bacer or
a]. in pressJ.

EtowahDarter

The Etowabdarteris a smali-sizci
percid fish that is moderately
compressedlateralls’,andhasa
moderutelvpointed snout~‘,‘iiii ii
tej mane!,obliquely anglediu~::t~.Tl;c
both’ groundshadeis brownor
olive. The side is usuaflv pagrurn~eu
with 13 or 14 small dark blctehes~Lst
below tbelateral line. Thebreastin
nuptial malesis dark g~een~sh’bluoThe
[tuwah darterhasprovendistinct f:oau
thegreenbreastdarter.E. /orc’cni. a
specacswith which it haspre~uaaa..v
beenconfused,by the absen o~rcd
markson thesidesandanalL us iii male
speci inens.

TheEtowahdarterinhabusworm and
cool, mediumandlargecreeksor small
riversthat aremoderateor high gra..iaeavi
with rocky bottoms. It is found in
relatively shallowriffles, with lar2e
gravel,cobble,andsmall boulder
substrates.TheEtowahdarteris
tvpacaliyassociatedwith theswiftost
portionsof shallow riffles, but
occasionallyadultsaretakenat the tails
of riffles. The siteshavingthe greatest
abundanceof Etowah dartershadclear
waterandrelativelylittle silt in the
riffles. The Etowahdarter, like other
membersof thesubgenusNoihonrjtus,
shunspool habitatsandis intolerant of
1 0.1 potindment.

The Etowahdarteris endemicto the
upper Etowah River systemin north -

Georgia,where it is restricted to the
upperEtowahRivermainsternandtwo
tributaries, Long Swampand Amicalola
Creeks.Thesestreamsdrain both the
Blue Ridge and Piedmontphvsiographic
provinces.This distributionsuggests
habitat specialization;all streams
inhabitedby this speciesare
geographicallyadjacentin themost
uplandportion of theriver system.For
a fish of moderateto largecreeksor
small rivers,theEtowahdarterhasone
of themostrestricteddistributions in
thesoutheast(Lee et a!. 1980).The
Etowahdarterhasbeenformally
describedby WoodandMavden (1903).

TheCherokeedarterappearedas a
category2 speciesin theService’s
noticeof reviewfor animal candidates
publishedin theFederalRegisterof
January6, 1989 (54 FR 554) and
November21, 1991 (56FR 58804).
Category2 speciesaretaxaunderre~ie\~
for listing, but for which conclusivedata
on biological vulnerabilityandthreat(s)
arenot currently availableto support
prdposedrules.

The Servicecommencedfundinga
statussujvev in 1989to better
determinethestatusof therecently
discoveredCherokeedarter.After field
work hadcommenced,another
undescribedfish wasdiscoveredin the
EtowahRiver system,theEtowahdarter.
Thesurveywasmodified to addressthe
populationstatusof both these
undescribeddarters.A final report was
receivedon March 30. 1993 (Burkhead
1993),providing sufficient informat~on
cci biological vu1nerab~litvandthreats
to supporta proposedrule to classifc
the Cherokee(jailer as threatenedand
theEto~vahdarteras endangered.

OnApril 6. 1993. theServicenotihed
poaeiitiallv affectedFederaland State
agenciesb’~mail that a statusrea’:c’.v
wasbeineconductedfor theCherokee
darterandEtowahdarter.Two
commentswerereceivedconcernanc
this notificat~on.The U.S. Forest-Ser~ice
statedthat it was unlikely ForestService
landsharboredsuitablehabitatfor the
two darterspecies.They alsonotedthat
future ForestServiceactivities in the
Etowah River watershedwereexpected
to decrearn.andthat it wasunlikels’
theseactivities would produceSfl\

noticeablesiltation effectson
downstreampopulationsof the
CherokeedarterandEtowahdarter.Tb’
Er.~vironmentalProtectionAgency
commentedon locatingspecific
watershedshaving high cumulative
non-point sourcestreamimpactsfor
potential restorationwork. This
information would be useful in the
recovery of the Cherokeedarter and
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Etowah darter.Neither agencyhad
objectionsto thepotentiallisting of
thesespecies.

Summaryof Comments and
Recommendations

In theOctober18, 1993, proposedrule
(53FR 53696).andthroughassociated
notifications,all interestedpartieswere
requestedto submit factualreportsand
informationthatmight contributeto the
developmentof afinal rulefor the
CherokeedarterandEtowahdarter.
AppropriateFederalandStateagencies.
county governments,scientific
organizations,andinterestedparties
werecontactedby letter dated
November’l. 1993,and wererequested
te comment.Legal noticeswere
publishedin TheAtlantaJournal/The
Atlanta Constitution,Atlanta, Georgia.
on October31, 1993,andin The
.t~ariettaDaily Journal, Marietta.
Georgia,on November5, 1993.

In responseto a formalrequestbc’ the
CherokeeCountyBoardof
Commissioners,apublic hearingon the
Service’sproposalto list theCherokee
darterandtheEtowahdarteras
•threatenedandendangered.
respectively,washeld on January12.
1994, at theCherokeeCounty
Administrative Building, Canton.
Georgia. Thecommentperiodwas
extendeduntil January24, 1994. A
noticeof thehearingandcomment
periodextensionwaspublishedin the
Federal Registeron December16, 1993
(58FR 65696)andin theCherokee
C~tizpn.Canton,Georgia.on December
29. 1993.

Seven~sTittenand17 oralcomments
(fourteenat thepublic hearing)were
receivedregardingtheproposedlisting.
Federalagenciesproviding written
commentsincludedtwo agenciesin the
U S. Departmentof Agriculture.Animal
DamageControl andSoil Conservation
Service.andthe U.S. Army Corpsof
Engineers(Corps).The Animal Damage
Control, CoosaRiverBasinInitiative.
andGeorgiaEnvironmental
Organizationsupportedthelisting; most
of theothercommentersdid not.
Following is a summaryof the
comments,concerns,andquestions
(referredto as “Issues” for thepurpose
of this summary)expressedin writing
andorally. Issuesof similar content
havebeengroupedtogether.These
issuesandtheService’sresponseto
eacharepresentedbelow,

Issue 1: Severalcommenters
.iuestionedthevalidity of both the
CherokeedarterandEtowahdarteras
taxonomicallydistinct snecies,

Response:Thesetwo fisheswere
recentlyrecognizedasspeciesnew to
‘c.aenceby prominentichthvologists

highly knowledgeableof fish in
southeasternUnited Statesstreams.A
few yearsprior to thestatussurveyfor
thesespeciesin theEtowahRiver
system(seeresponseto Issue5 below),
theCherokeedarterhadbeen
consideredtheCoosadarter
(Etheostomacoosae)andtheEtowah
darterhadbeenconsideredthe
greenbreastdarter(E. jordani). Status
surveycollectionsin theEtowahRiver
systemprovidedmaterialsufficientfor
ichthyologiststo determinethat the
CherokeedarterandEtowahdarterwere
indeedvalid biological entities distinct
from thespeciestheyhadheretofore
beenconfusedwith. Specifically,
uniquecolor differencesin nuptial
(breeding)malesof both specieswere
discovered.Publicationof aspecies
descriptionin scientific journaland
peerreviewby thescientific community
is theprimar~’safeguardto ensurethat
speciesdescriptionsarebasedon sound
scientificinformation.Therefore,the
Serviceacceptsthebiological basisof
speciesvalidity providedin the
forthcomingscientificdescriptionand
distinction of theCherokeedarterfrom
theCoosadarter(Baueref a]. in press),
andthepublishedscientific description
anddistinctionof theEtowahdarter
from thegreenbreastdarter(Woodand
Mayden,1993).

Issue2: Onecommenterwanted
clarification asto thetiming of the
determinationof theCherokeedarteras
a valid speciesin relation to the
impoundmentof AllatoonaReservoir,
andinsinuatedthat sincetheCherokee
darterwasnot formally recognizedas a
speciesat the time of reservoir
construction,thepreimpoundment -

recordsfor populationsof theCherokee
darteralluded to in theproposedrule
referredactuallyto theCoosadarter.

Response:As statedin the responseto
IssueI above,thesetwo specieswere
recognizedas newspecieswithin the
pastfew years.anddecadesafter
Allatoona Reservoirwascompletedin
the1950’s.However,theServiceis not
indicating that thesetwo fishesevolved
into separatespeciessinceconstruction
of this reservoir.Theevolution of new
speciesis a slow processthat takes
thousandsor millions of years.Thereis
rio scientific basisto suggestthe
CherokeedarterortheEtowahdarter
evolvedsincetheconstructionof
AllatoonaReservoir,or that this
reservoirplayedanypart in the
evolution of thesespecies.Therefore,
thepreimpoundmentrecordsof
Cherokeedartersstatedin theproposed
rule pertainto thatspecies.anddo not
referto populationsof theCoosadarter.

Issue3.’ Somecommentersthought
that sincetheChdrokeeCounty Water

andSewerageAuthority (County)had
-takenthehabitatrequirementsof the
federallythreatenedamberdarter
(Perciria antesella)into considerationin
thedesignof theproposeddam
impoundingtheYellow Creek
Reservoii,that thehabitatrequirements
of theCherokeedarteror Etowahdarter
couldalsobe consideredhavingbeen
addressed,

Response:Thereareover 150
recognizedspeciesof dartersin 4 genera
andapproximatelytwo dozen
subgenera.Dartersoccupya wide
variety of habitatsin rivers, lakes,and
swampsfrom theAppalachian
Mountainsto nearsealevel throughout
muchof easternNorth America.The
Etowah Riversystemaloneharborsat
least 11 speciesof darters.Eachspecies
inhabitsdiscreetportionsof the
drainageandspecifichabitatswithin its
streams.The habitatrequirementsof the
Cherokeedarterdiffer significantly from
thoseof theamberdarter.However, the
habitatrequirementsof theamberdarter
aresimilar, but not identical, to that of
theEtowahdarter.Thehabitat
requirementsof theCherokeedarter
havethereforenot beentakeninto
considerationduringthe designof the
proposeddam.

Issue4: Numerouscommenters
questionedthetiming of theproposed
rule to provide protectionfor the
Cherokeed~prterandEtowahdarterin
relation to theproposedYellow Creek
Reservoirproject,andonecommenter
madethesameassertionconcerninga
proposedregionalconnectorhighway
(Atlantabeltway).

Response:The Serviceis requiredby
theAct to protectanyspeciesthat is in
dangerof extinction.This determination
is baseduponthebestavailable
biological information.Whenthe
Servicefirst learnedof theoccurrenceof
theundescribedCherokeedarter,a
narrowly distributedandpotentially
imperilled fish in time EtowahRiver
system,a surveywasfundedto
determineits status.That surveywas
initiatedduring the fall of 1989.The
following summer,theEtowabdarter
wasdeterminedto be a distinct and
highly localizedspecies.andthe survey
continuedfor both dartersuntil 1992.
When information wasobtainedon the
populationstatusanddistribution of the
CherokeedarterandEtowahdarter
sufficient to support federallisting of
thesespecies.a rule wasproposedto
afford them protectionundertheAct.
Thetiming of theproposedrule to list
thesetwo fisheswastherefore
coincidentalwith ans’proposed
constructionprojects.

Issue5: Severalcommenters
questionedtheextentof thestatus

-I

ii
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surveyfor the Cherokeedarter and
Etowahdarterandthepossibility that
other areastreamsmay harbor
populations of thesespecies.

Response:From the fall of 1989 to
summer 1q92, a surveyof the Etowah
River systemwas fundedby theService
to determinethe population statusand
total distribution of the Cherokeedarter
andEtowahdarter (seeresponseto Issue
4 above).A total of 146collectionsat
141 sitesthroughouttheEtowahRiver
systemweremadefor thesetwo fish.
Although sitesoutside the Etowah River
systemwerenot surveyedfor the
CherokeedarterandEtowahdarter,the
Servicebelievesthatthefish faunasin
surroundingdrainagesareadequately
known to assurethat thesetwo darters
arenot present.The discoveryof
additional populationsof oneorboth
specieswithin theEtowahRiversystem
is possible.However,basedon the
extensivestatussurveyconductedfor
theCherokeedarterandEtowahdarter,
theServicebelievesno furthersurveys
arewarrantedbeforelisting these
species.

Issue6: Numerouscommenterswere
concernedwith thepotentialeconomic
impact that this listing proposalmight
haveon completionof the proposed
Yellow CreekReservoirproject, andone
commenterhadthesameconcerns
regardingtheproposedAtlantabeltway.

Response:TheServiceis requiredby
theAct to usethebestavailable
biological informationin theassessment
of determiningwhetherFederal
protectionundertheAct is warranted
for a species.The economicimpacts
resulting from endangeredspecies
protectionarenot to be considered
whenproposingto list a speciesunder
the Act.

Section7 oftheAct requiresFederal
agenciesto ensurethat their actionsare
not likely to jeopardizethecontinued
existenceof any listed species(seethe
“Available ConservationMeasures”
sectionof this rule andthe responseto
Issue7 below).TheCorpshasconsulted
with theServiceregardingthepotential
effectsthis federallypermittedreservoir
projectmight haveon theamberdarter,
which occursin theEtowahRiver
mainstemboth upstreamand
downstreamof theYellow Creek
confluence.TheCounty conducteda
studs’addressingissuespertainingto
theamberdarterandits habitatandhas
mademodificationsto thedam that
shouldminimize anyimpactsuponthis
federallyendangeredfish. TheService
is currently in conferen~ewith the
Corpsregardingthedam’spotential
impactsupontheCherokeedarterand
Etowahdarter.As mentioned elsewhere
(seeresponseto Issue3 above),the

habitat requirements of the Etowah
darterare similar to that of theamber
darter. The design changesof the
proposed dam that addressedthe amber
dartermay possibly also protect the
E(owahdarterand its habitat. However,-

the Cherokeedarter, which has a
population in Yellow Creek very near
the dam site, has different
environmentalrequirements.The
County has proven that it waswilling to
work with the Corpsarid the Servicein
addressingissuesrelated to theamber
darter.The Servicecommendsthese
effortsby the County, and is confident
that a similar agreementcan be reached
for Cherokeedarterissues.The Service’s
Brunswick, Georgia,Field Office is
currently working with the Corps and
County to resolvespecific issues
relatingto theCherokeedarter.
Additionally, for theproposedAtlanta
beltwayproject,theFederalHighway
Administrationmustconsultwith the
Service’sBrunswickField Office
regardingpotential impactsto the
Cherokeedarter and Etowah darter
duringtheplanningandconstri,iction
phases.

Issue7: One commenter requestedthe~
Servicepreparea“takingsanalysis”
underExecutiveOrder12630that
assessesthe impacts of the listing of the
Cherokeedarter and the Etowah darter
on private property rights.

Response:The Attorney General has
issuedguidelines to the Department of
theInterior (Department)on the
implementationof ExecutiveOrder
12630:Governmental Actions and
Interferencewith Constitutionally
ProtectedPropertyRights. Underthese
guidelines,aspecialruleapplieswhen
anagencywithin theDepartmentis
requiredby law to actsolelyupon
specifiedcriteriathat leavetheagency
no discretion.In enactingthe Act,
Congressrequired theDepartmentto list
speciesbasedsolelyupon scientificand
commercialdataindicatingwhether
they arein dangerof extinction. The
Serviceis prohibitedby law from
withholding alistingbasedon concerns
regardingeconomicimpact andis
requiredto act,with appropriatepublic
notice, understrict time tables.Any
failure to comply may subjectthe
agencyto legalaction. Accordingly, the
provisionsof theAttorney General’s
guidelinesrelatingto nondiscretionary
actionsclearlyareapplicableto the
determinationof threatenedstatusfor
the Cherokeedarter andendangered
statusfor theEtowahdarter,andTaking
Implication Assessmentsunder
ExecutiveOrder 12630cannot be
consideredin makingthis
administrative decision. SincetheAct
precludesconsideration of economic

factors during the listing process.the
Service’spolicy is to not considertaking
implications at this time.

Issue8: Severalcommenterswere
concernedwith potenCial impacts the
listing of theCherokeedarterandthe
Etowah dartermight have on normal
agricultural activities and thoseof other
private property ownersin the
watershed.

Response:Basedon the resultsof
listing otheraquaticorganismsin north
Georgia streams,the Servicedoesnot
believetherewill be any major impact
to theseactivities as a result of listing
thesetwo fishes.Concerningtheuseof
agricultural chemicals,the Service
consults with the Environmental
Protection Agency to determine if
pesticidesthey register are likely to
jeopardizethecontinuedexistenceof
listedspecies.Whentheuseof a
particular chemicalis likely to
jeopardizealistedspecies,theuseof
that chemicalis restricted. Thus. it is
possiblethat the useof a pesticidecould
berestrictedto avoidjeopardizingeither
of thesedarters.Any othernew
restrictions that might be placed on
farmersor other local landowners
would bedueto activitiesinvolving
Federalagencies,whichmust review
their actionsanddetermine,under
Section7 of the Act, if such actions
would adverselyaffect thesespecies
(seethe “Available Conservation
Measures” sectionof this rule and the
responseto Issue6above).The Service
stressesto landowners the importance
of maintainingdevelopment-free
streamsidebufferzonesto protect
streamhabitatandwaterquality upon
which theCherokeedarterandEtowah
darterdepend.Maintainingsuchbuffers
should avoidmanypotentialimpactsto
thesetwo fishes.

issue9: Onecommenterstatedthat
reservoirs act as sedimenttraps, and
suggestedthatdamsmay actually
improve habitat conditions in
downstreamareas.

Response:The Serviceconcursthat
damsmay actas trapsof alluvial
sedimentsthatareconducteddown
streambedsandoverbankareasduring
flood conditions. However,conditions
below Allatoona Reservoir,despite an
obviousreductionin thebedloadand
othertransportedsediments,have
deterioratedsincereservoirconstruction
severaldecadesago.Riverinehabitat
hasbeenaltereddueprimarily to the
disruption of the normal flow and
temperatureregimein the lower Etowah
River below Allatoona Dam. Dams
should not be perceivedas beneficial
sedimenttraps; rather efforts should be
madeon a watershed-widebasisto
abatesourcesof silt andother sediments
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resultingfrom poorlandusepractices
from enteringstreamsin the fIrst place.

Summaryof FactorsAffecting the
Species

After athoroughreviewand
considerationof all information
available,theServicehasdetermined
thattheCherokeedarteraridEtowah
dartershouldbe classifiedas threatened
andendangered,respectively.
Proceduresfoundat Section4(a)(1)of
theAct (16U.S.C. 1531 et seq.)and
regulations(50CFR part424)
promulgatedto implementthelisting
provisionsof theActwere followed. A
speciesmaybe determinedto be an
endangeredorthreatenedspeciesdueto
oneor more of the five factorsdescribed
in Section4(a)(1). Thesefactorsand
their applicationto theCherokeedarter
(Etheostoma(Ulocentra)sp.) andthe
Etowahdarter(Etheostomaetowahae)
meas follows:

A. Thepresentor threatened
destruction,modification,or
curtailmentof its habitator range.The
CherokeedarterandEtowahdarterare
both endemicto theEtowahRiver
systemin northGeorgia(Burkhead
1993).Thesespecieshavebeen
renderedvulnerableto extinctionby
significantlossof habitatwithin their
restrictedrangein theEtowahRiver
system.Theprimary causesof habitat
lossin theEtowahRiver systemresult
fromimpoundments,siltation,point
sourceandnonpointsourcepollution
which includes,but is not limited to,
municipal andindustrialwaste
discharges,agricultural runoff from crop
monocultureandpoultry farms,poultry
processingplants,andsilvicultural
activities.Muchnon-agriculturaland
non-silviculturalhabitatdegradationin
thewatershedcanbe attributedto
increasedurbanizationin theAtlanta
metropolitanarea.All suchforms of
habitatdegradationandpollution
disrupt theaquaticecosystem,
particularlyimpactingbenthic (bottom)
habitat.Certainpollutantsmaybe
particularlyharmful in cumulative
concentrationsor if synergistic
interactionswith otherpollutantsor
chemicalsoccur.

Impoundmentshavedestroyeda
significantportion of thefree-flowing
streamhabitat in which theCherokee
darterlives, andto alesserextentthey
haveimpactedtheEtowahdarteras
well. Basedon museumrecords,at least
five preimpoundmentpopulationsof
theCherokeedarterwereextirpatedby
the inundationof the4,800hectare
(11,856acre)AllatoonaReservoir,
whichwascompletedin 1955.
Undoubtedlyother,undocumented,
Cherokeedarter populations were

destroyedby thefilling of Allatoona
Reservoir.Thelower portionsof someof
the tributarysystemsthat harbor
populations of the Cherokeedarterare
inundated by Allatoona Reservoir,
isolating thesepopulations from other
populationsin adjacenttributaries.
Thesetributaries include Butler, Shoal,
and Stamp Creeks.

BesidesAllatoona Reservoir,
numeroussmall impoundments and
pondsarescatteredthroughoutthe
rangeof theCherokeedarterandEtowah
darter. Impoundmentsdirectly destroy
streamhabitatby convertingfree-
flowing streamsto man-madelakesand
pondsandby causingpopulation
isolation.Furthermore,small
impoundmentsarenumerousenoughin
theEtowahsystemto haveanegative
effecton both thesespeciesby causing
populationfragmentationandisolation,
therebyblocking geneticinterchange.
Impoundmentsalsoalterthethermal
regimenof thestreamsections
immediatelybelowthedamandcan
causecommunityshifts favoring
centrarchidfishes(Brim 1991),potential
predatorson both Cherokeedartersand
Etowahdarters,TheYellow Creek
populationof theCherokeedarteris
directly threatenedby a proposedwater
supply impoundmentplannedby the
CherokeeCountygovernment.During
low flow periods,30 percentof the flow
in theEtowahRiveraboveaknown
Etowahdartersitewill be comprisedof
waterfrom Yellow Creekreservoir.
Although theeffectsof this flow
augmentationin theEtowahRiverare
notknown, thechangein waterquality
andtemperaturecould potentiallyhave
anegativeimpact ontheEtowah darter.

Erosionfrom poor landusepractices
causesextensivetopsoil erosionand
subsequentsiltation of streambottoms.
Sourcesof siltation includetimber
clearcutting,clearingof riparian
vegetation,andthoseconstruction,
mining,andagriculturalpracticesthat
allow exposedearthto enterstreams.
Light to moderatelevelsofsiltation are
ubiquitousin manystreamsof the
EtowahRiver systemwhichhave
populationsof theCherokeedarterand
Etowahdarter.Siltationproblemsare
severein many tributaries that have or
probablyhadpopulationsof the
Cherokeedarter, including Allatoona
Creek,theLittle River system,
SettingdownCreek,PumpkinvineCreek,
andportionsof ShoalCreek(Cherokee
County),SharpMountainCreek,Long
SwampCreek,andRaccoonCreek.
Siltation anddustfrom marblequarries
in PickensCounty are alsomajor
problemsin LongSwampCreek,the
only knownsitewhere the Cherokee
darterandEtowah darterarefound

together. A rock quarryhas been
proposedfor Stamp Creekin Bartow
County.If permitted,this quarrymay
haveanadverseeffecton theStamp
Creek Cherokeedarterpopulation.

The extremeisolationorabsenceof
populations of the Cherokeedarter in
Settingdown, Allatoona, andRaccoon
Creeks and the Little River alsostrongly
suggestslocalizedextirpation of
populations.Theseintermediatestreams
probablyoncesupportedpopulationsof
thefish. Muchof theLittle Riversystem
is heavily affectedby largesilt andbed
loads;theremainingfish faunais
depauperateandat manysites
dominatedby speciestolerantof
degradedhabitats.

TheCherokeedarterandEtowah
darterareobligatebenthicspecies
living, foraging,andspawningonthe
streambottom.Hence,their well-being
is directly tied to benthichabitat
quality. Negativeeffectsof silt on
benthicfishesweresummarizedby
BurkheadandJenkins(1991). Silt
reducesor destroyshabitat
heterogeneityandprimary productivity.
increasesfish eggandlarval mortality,
abradesorganisms,andalters,degrades,
andentombsmacrobenthic
communities.Thegeologicalstrata
drainedby theEtowahRiver, -

particularlyin themiddle andupper
portion of thesystem,contain
micaceousschist.The erosionof this
substrataaddsan extremelyabrasive
micacomponentto thesilt whichmust
renderthis silt evenmorenoxiousto
benthicorganisms.CurrentStateand
Federalregulationspreventingsilt from
enteringstreamsarelacking,
inadequate,ornot rigorouslyenforced.

Thecurrentrateof developmentin
thecountiessurroundingAtlanta is very
high. Themostrapiddevelopment
appearsto bein Gwinnett,Cobband
FultonCounties,but it is alsohigh in
CherokeeCounty,which is in theheart
of theCherokeedarter’scurrentrange.
Theeffectsof creepingurbanization
maybe seenas far away as Dawson
County,wherethemajority of Etowah
darterpopulations,aswell assome
Cherokeedarterpopulations,are
known. Oneof theprincipal concernsto
thecontinuedexistenceof theCherokee
darterandEtowahdarteris thetrendof
convertingfarmlandinto localized
subdivisionsin areasrelativelyremote
from Atlanta. Associatedwith increased
developmentandland clearingis
increasedsiltation from erosion,
acceleratedrunoff, andtransportof
pollutantsinto theEtowahRiversystem.

The tributariesharboringthe
CherokeedarterandEtowahdarterare
crossedby numerousroad andrailroad
bridges.Thesestreamcrossingsare
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potentialsitesfor accidentswhichcould
spill toxic material into streams.Spills
of toxic chemicalsat suchcrossings
could causecatastrophicfish kills and
local extirpationof thesespecies.The
high numberofbridgecrossingsover
CherokeedarterandEtowahdarter
streamsincreasestheprobability that
such an accident will occur in the
future.

Attending the urbanizationassociated
with the growth of the Atlanta
metropolitanareaisa proposedbypass
that would circumnavigateAtlanta to
the northwest, connectingInterstate75
with Georgia StateRoute3?1. The
bypasswould crossseveralCherokee
darterstreamsin portions of Forsyth,
Cherokee,andBartowCounties.It will
alsotraversethe Etowah River at the
lower portion of theEtowahdarter’s
range.Bridgeconstructionsites,some
locatedin theupperEtowahRiver
watershed,would bepotentialsources
of sedimentationto Cherokeeand
Etowahdarterhabitat. In addition, since
this roadwayis not beingplannedas a
limited accesshighway,theprojectwill
fosterde~e1opmentnotjust at major
roadintersections,asoccurswith
interstatehghways,but alongtheentire
corridor.

It hasbeenreportedthat 75 percentof
Georgia~slandfills will reachcapacityin
five years(TheAtianta Journal/The
Atlanta Gonstitution,February23,
1992). Severallandfill siteshave been
proposedwithin therangeof the
Cherokeedarter;onesuchsiteoccurs
betweentwoCherokeedarterstreams:
RigginaandEdward Creeks,Cherokee
County.Onthebanksof the upper
EtowabRiver, within theknown limited
rangeof theEtowahdarter, the Sanitfihl
PineBluff landfill is beingconstructed.
Refusemay ultimatelybereceivedfrcrn
asfar awayasNewYork. Whenthis
facility reachesits full potential,it will
purportedly be the largest landfill in the
easternUnitedStates.While modern
landfills arepurportedlydesignedto
containn.moff, it seemsdoubtful that
suchlandfills would actually retain
barrierintegrity for decadesto come,

B. Overutilizationfor commercial,
recreational,scientific,or educational
purposes.In general,small speciesof
fish, suchastheCherokeedarterand
Etowahdarter,whicharenot utilized
for eithersport orbait purposes,are
unknownto thegeneralpublic.
Therefore,takeof thesespeciesby the
generalpublic hasnotbeenaproblem.
Publication of this rulewill inform the
generalpublicasto thepresenceof
thesetwo dartersin the Etowab River
system.Consideringtherestricted
distributionandsmallpopulationsof
the Etowah andCherokeedarters,it

would beeasyfor vandalsor
unscrupulous collectorsto eliminateor
seriouslyimpactpopulationsin specific
stream reachesif their exactlocation
were known.The distribution of these
specieshasthereforebeendescribed
only in general terms for thepurposes.
of this rule.Federalprotectionwill
serveto minimize adversepopulation
impactsfrom illegal take,but the Act~s
penaltiesare not likely to act asa
completedeterrentto such actions.

C. Diseaseor predation.Predation
upon the CherokeedarterandEtowah
darterundoubtedlyoccurs.However,
thereis no evidenceto suggestthat
predationthreatensthesespecies,
exceptpossibly in altered stream
reachesimmediatelybelowdams.

D. The inadequacyofexisting
regulatorymechanisms.The Official
Codeof GeorgiaAnnotated27—2—12
prohibits the taking of these fish
without a statecollecting permit.
Federal listing provides protection
under Section9 of the Act by requiring
Federal permitsfor takingthe Cherokee
darterandEtowah darter. Additional
protection is gainedunder Section7 of
the Act by requiringFederalagenciesto
consult with the Servicewhenprojects
they fund,authorize,or conductmay
affect thesespecies.

E. Othernatural or manmadefactors
affectingits continuedexistence.The
rangeof the Cherokeedarterhas been
fragmented,andasignificantportion of
the middle Etowah River systemhas
beenpermanently altered by Allatoona
Reservoir. The streamsinhabitedby the
CherokeedarterandEtowahdarter
exhibit, on average,moderateto heavy
degradationfrom poorlanduse
practicesandsmall impoundments.
Thesestrong negativeforceshave
causedlocal extirpation of both
CherokeedarterandEtowahdarter
populations andhave inducedrange
fragmentation andsubsequentisolation
of the Cherokeedarter intO small
populations. Genetic diversity has
subsequentlybeenlost due to these
population losses.The geneticdiversity
of all populationsmaybeneededto
providethespeciesenoughgenetic
variability to adapt to environmental
changeand thus assurelong-term
viability. The restricteddistributionof
both the CherokeedarterandEtowah
darter also makespopulations
vulnerableto extirpationfrom
catastrophicevents,suchasan
accidentaltoxic chemicalspill. Range
fragmentationandlossof genetic
diversity, independently and in concert,
clearly threatenthe continued existence
of thesespecies.

The Servicehas carefullyassessedthe
bestscientificand commercial

information available regardingthe past,
present,andfuturethreatsfacedby both
dartersin determiningto makethisrule
final. Basedon this .evaluation, the
preferredaction is to list theCherokee
darterandEtowahdarterasthreatened
andendangeredspecies,respectively.
The Cherokeedarter is now known from
approximately 20 tributarysystemsof
the Etowah River,but healthy
populations areknown from just a few
sites.The Etowah darteris known from
only the upper EtowahRivermainstem
and two tributarysystems.Both species
arerestrictedto the Etowah River
systemin northGeorgia.Thesefish and
their benthic habitat havebeen,and
continueto be. impacted by range
reduction,isolation by impoundment,
and generalhabitatdestruction.Despite
its wider distributionandgreater
number of knownpopulations, the
Cherokeedarterappearsto have moreof
its habitat threatenedby thesefactors,
which havealreadyresultedin ahigher
level of population fragmentation and
isolation relative to the Etowah darter.
The restricted distribution of thesetwo
speciesalsomakeslocalized
populations susceptibleto catastrophic
events.Becauseofthesefactors,
endangeredappearsthe most
appropriatestatusfor the Etowah darter
and threatenedappearsmost
appropriatefor theCherokeedarter.

Critical Habitat
Section4(a)(3)of theAct, as

amended,requiresthat,to the maximum
extentprudentanddeterminable,the
Secretaryproposecritical habitatat the
time a speciesis determinedto be
endangeredor threatened.The Service’s
regulations(50CFR424.12(a)(1))state
that designationofcritical habitat is not
prudentwhen oneorboth of the
following situationsexist:(1) The
speciesis threatenedby takingor other
activity and theidentificationof critical
habitatcanbeexpectedto increasethe
degreeof threat to the speciesor (2)
suchdesignation of critical habitat
would not be beneficial to the species.
TheServicefinds thatdesignationof
critical habitat is not prudentfor these
species.Sucha determination would
result in no knownbenefit to these
species,anddesignationofcritical
habitatcould further threaten them.

Section7(a)(2)and regulations
codified at 50 CFR part402require
Federal agenciesto ensure,in
consultationwith and with the
assistanceof theService,thatactivities
they authorize,fund, or carry out are not
likely to jeopardizethecontinued
existenceof listedspeciesor destroy or
adverselymodify theircritical habitat, if
designated.(See“Available -
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ConservationMeasures”sectionfor a
furtherdiscussionof Section7.) As part
of thedevelopmentof this final rule,
Federal arid State agencieswere notified
of thedarters’generaldistribution, and
they wererequestedto provide dataon
proposedFederalactionsthatmight
adverselyaffect thetwospecies.

Shouldany futureprojectsbe
proposedin areasinhabitedby these
fishes,theinvolvedFederalagencywill
alreadyhavethegeneraldistributional
dataneededto determineif thespecies
maybe impactedby theiraction;andif
neededmorespecificdistributional
informationwould beprovided.

Regulationspromulgatedfor
implementingSection7, referenced
above,provide for both ajeopardy
standard,basedon listing alone,andfor
a destructionoradversemodification
standard,in caseswherecritical habitat
hasbeendesignated.TheCherokeeand
Etowah dartersoccupyveryrestricted
streamreaches.Any significantadverse
modificationor destructionof their
habitatwould likely jeopardizetheir
continuedexistence.Underthese
conditionsthetwo standardsare
essentiallyequivalent.Therefore,no
additionalprotectionfor thespecies
would accruefrom critical habitat
designationthatwould not alsoaccrue
from listing thesespecies.Oncelisted,
theServicebelievesthatprotectionof
their habitatcanbe accomplished
throughtheSection7 jeopardy
standard,andthroughSection9
prohibitions againsttake.

Thesetwo fish areveryrare.
Therefore,takingfor scientificpurposes
andprivatecollectionscould posea
threatto their continuedexistenceif site
speciflc informationwere releasedto
thegeneralpubhc.The publicationof
critical habitatmapsin theFederal
Registerandlocal newspapersandother
publicity accompanyingcritical habitat
designationcould increasethe
collectionthreatandalsoincreasethe
potential for vandalismduringtheoften
controversialcritical habitatdesignation
process.The potentialfor future habitat
disruptionwithin oneor both of these
species’rangesresultingfrom the
rapidly expandingAtlanta metropolitan
areamakesdesignationof critical
habitatpotentiallymore contentious
andcontroversial,increasingthe
possibility for vandalismto occur. The
locationsof thesespecies’populations
haveconsequentlybeendescribedonly
in generaltermsin this rule. Any
existingpreciselocality datawould be
availableto appropriateFederal,State,
andlocal governmentalagenciesfrom
theServiceoffice describedin the
ADDRESSESsection;from theService’s
BrunswickFieldOffice, Federal

Building, Room 334,801Gloucester
Street, Brunswick, Georgia 31520;and
from the GeorgiaDepartmentof Natural
Resources,and GeorgiaNaturalHeritage
Program.

For the foregoing reasonsthe Service
believesthatcritical habitatdesignation
is not prudent for thesespecies,andthat-
their protectioncanbeadequately
accomplishedthroughtheSection7
jeopardystandardandSection9
prohibitionsagainsttake.

Available ConservationMeasures

Conservationmeasuresprovidedto
specieslistedasendangeredor
threatenedundertheEndangered
SpeciesAct includerecognition,
recoveryactions,requirementsfor
Federalprotection,andprohibitions
againstcertainpractices.Recognition
throughlisting encouragesandresults
in conservationactionsby Federal,
State,andprivateagencies,groups,and
individuals. TheEndangeredSpecies
Act providesfor possibleland
acquisitionandcooperationwith the
Statesandrequiresthatrecoveryactions
be carriedout for all listed species.The
protectionrequiredof Federalagencies
andtheprohibitions againsttaking and
harm arediscussed,in part,below.

Section7(a) of theAct, as amended,
requiresFederalagenciesto evaluate
theiractionswith roapectto anyspecies
that is proposedor listedasendangered
orthreatenedandwith respectto its
critical habitat,if any is being
designated.Regulationsimplementing
this interagencycooperationprovision
of theAct arecodifiedat 50 CFR part
402. Section7(a)(2)requiresFederal
agenciesto ensurethatactivitiesthey
authorize,fund, or carryout arenot
likely to jeopardizethecontinued
existenceof sucha speciesor to destroy
oradverselymodify its critical habitat.
If aFederalactionmay affect a listed
speciesor its critical habitat,the
responsibleFederalagencymustenter
into formal consultationwith the
Service.

Federalinvolvement is expectedto
includetheEnvironmentalProtection
AgencythroughtheCleanWaterAct’s
provisionsfor pesticideregistrationand
wastemanagementactions.TheCorps
of Engineerswill considerthesespecies
in projectplanningandoperation,and
during thepermitreview process.The
FederalHighway Administration will
considerimpactsof federallyfunded
bridgeandroadconstructionprojects
whenknown habitatmaybe impacted.
Continuingurbandevelopmentwithin
theEtowahRiversystemmayinvolve
theFarn~rsHomeAdministration and
their loanprograms.The Soil
ConservationServicewill considerthe

speciesduringprojectplanningand
undertheir farmer’sassistance
programs.The Forest Servicewill
considerdownstreamimpacts to habitat
of theEtowahdarterwhen planningor
implementingsilvicultural, recreational,
or otherprogramsin theheadwatersof
Amicalola Creekandtheextremeupper
portion of theEtowahRivermainstem
occurringin theChattahoocheeNational
Forest.It hasbeentheexperienceof the
Servicethatnearly all Section 7
consultationscanbe resolvedso thatthe
speciesis protectedandtheproject
objectivesaremet.

The Act andimplementing
regulationsfoundat 50 CFR 17.21 for
endangeredspecies,and17.21 and
17.31 for threatenedspeciessetforth a
seriesof generalprohibitions and
exceptionsthatapplyto all endangered
andthreatenedwildlife. These
prohibitions,in part,makeit illegal for
anypersonsubjectto jurisdiction of the
UnitedStatesto take(includesharass,
harm,pursue,hunt, shoot,wound,kill,
trap,or collect;orattemptanyof these),
import or export,ship in interstate
commercein thecourseof commercial
activity, or sell or offer for salein
interstateorforeign commerceany
listedspecies.It alsois illegal to
possess,sell, deliver, carry,transport,or
ship anysuchwildlife thathasbeen
takenillegally. Certainexceptionsapply
to agentsof theServiceandState
conservationagencies.

Permitsmaybeissuedto carryout
otherwiseprohibitedactivities
involving endangeredor threatened
wildlife speciesundercertain
circumstances.Regulationsgoverning
permits areat 50 CFR 17.22, 17.23,and
17.32.Suchpermitsareavailablefor
scientificpurposes,to enhancethe
propagationor survivalof thespecies,
and/orfor incidentaltakein connection
with otherwiselawful activities.For
threatenedspecies,therearealso
permits for zoologicalexhibition,
educationalpurposes,or special
purposesconsistentwith thepurposeof
the Act. In someinstances,permitsmay
beissuedfor a specifiedtime to relieve
undueeconomichardshipthatwould be
sufferedif suchreliefwerenot
available.Sincethesespeciesarenot in
trade,suchpermitrequestsarenot -

expected.
It is thepolicy of theService(59 FR

34272)to identify to themaximum
extentpracticableatthetime aspecies
is listedthoseactivitiesthatwould or
would not constitutea violation of
section 9 of theAct. Theintentof this
policy is to increasepublic awarenessof
theeffect of thelisting on proposedand
ongoingactivitieswithin aspecies’
range.TheServiceis notawareofany
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otherwiselawful activitiesbeing
conductedby thepublic that will be -

affectedby this listing and result in a
violation of section9.

Questionsregardingwhether specific
activities will constitute a violation of
section9 should be directedto the Field
Supervisor of the Service’sJacksonville
Office (seeADDRESSESsection).Requests
for copiesof the regulationsconcerning
listedanimalsandgeneralinquiries
regardingprohibitions andpermitsmay
be addressedto the U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service,SoutheastRegional
Office. Ecological ServicesDivision,
Threat~.oedandEndangeredSpecies.
1875 Century Boulevard,Atlanta,
Georgia 30345—3301(Telephone404/
679—7099,Facsimi!e4041679—7081).

National Environmental Policy Act

The Servicehas determinedthat an
Environmental Assessment,as defined
under theauthority of the National
Environmental Policy Act of 1969,need
not he prepared in connection with
regulations adoptedpursuant to section
4(a) of the EndangeredSpeciesAct of
1973. as amended.A noticeoutlining
the Ser.ice’s reasonsfor this
determination was published in the
FederalRegisteron October 25. 1983
(48 FR 49244).
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List of Subjectsin 50CFR Part 17

Endangered andthreatenedspecies.
Exports. Imports,Reportingand
recordkeepingrequirements.and
Transportation.

Regulation Promulgation

Accordingly, part 17,subchapter B of
chapter!, title 50 of theCodeof Federal
Regulations, is amended as set forth
below:

PART ‘17—[AMEP’1DEDI

1. The authority citation for Part 17
continuesto read as follows:

Authority: 16 U.S.C. 1361—1407;16 U.S.C.
1531—1544;16U.S.C. 4201—4245;Pub. L. 99—
625, 100Stat. 3500;unlessotherwisenoted.

2. Amend~ 17.11(h)by adding the
following, in alphabetical order under
“FISHES”, to the List of Endangered
andThreatenedWildlife to readas
follows:

§17.11 Endangeredand threatened -

wildlife.
* S * S *

D,ced: November23, 1904.

Mollie H. Beattie,
D~rec;or.FishandWildhfe i.~’ke~
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